
Summary of April 8, 2025 

CLETS Advisory Committee 

Meeting 

 

This summary of the April 8, 2025 CLETS Advisory Committee meeting includes: 

• Agenda from Meeting 
• Executive Secretary Report 
• Legislative Update 
• New CLETS Service Application Staff Comments 
• Transcript of the Meeting 

 

Not included in this summary: 

• Action Items from Meeting - None to report from the April 8, 2025 meeting. 



Department of Justice (DOJ) 
California Law Enforcement Telecommunications System (CLETS) 

CLETS Advisory Committee (CAC) Meeting 
Notice and Agenda 

 
April 8, 2025 

1:30 p.m. 
 

Elk Grove City Council Chambers 
8400 Laguna Palms Way 

Elk Grove, CA 95758 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Housekeeping 

 
4. Approval of Minutes from October 15, 2024, CAC Meeting 

 
5. Chairman’s Report 

a. New Committee Member Introductions 
   

6. Executive Secretary’s Report  
a. CLETS Traffic 
b. Misuse Statistics 
c. Action Items 

 
7. CLETS Legislative Update – John Ponce, DOJ, will provide an update on pending 

legislation 
a. Assembly Bill 354 (Rodriguez) - Commission on Peace Officer Standards and 

Training 
 

8. New Service Requests 
 

a. CN-01 – Rio Hondo College Campus Police and Safety Department (Los Angeles 
County) 
 

9. Upgrade Applications Approved by DOJ 
 

a. City of Mammoth Lakes Police Department (Mono County) 
b. City of Delano Police Department (Kern County) 
c. Stanislaus County Sheriff's Department (Stanislaus County) 
d. United States Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms, and Explosives (Los Angeles 

County) 
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e. United States Social Security Administration, Office of Inspector General, Office of 
Investigations (Alameda County) 

f. Northern California Regional Intelligence Center (San Francsico County) 
g. Sonoma County Sheriff’s Office (Sonoma County) 
h. City of Roseville Police Department (Placer County) 
i. City of Monterey Park Police Department (Los Angeles County) 
j. City of Rocklin Police Department (Placer County) 
k. City of Indio Police Department (Riverside County) 
l. San Bernardino County Probation Department (San Bernardino County) 
m. City of Tracy Police Department (San Joaquin County) 
n. City of Lemoore Police Department (Kings County) 
o. United States Drug Enforcement Administration (Orange County) 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

10. Client Report for noncompliance issues – Closed session pursuant to Government Code section 11126, 
subdivisions (c)(18) – Review of detailed Client Reports regarding specific matters that pose “a threat 
or potential threat of criminal activity” against CLETS and/or CLETS data transmitted between the 
Department of Justice and specific client law enforcement agencies. 

 
OPEN SESSION 

 
11. Members’ Reports 

 
12. CAC Discussion/Open Forum/Public Comment 

 
13. Next CAC Meeting/Adjourn 

 
Notices and agendas are also available at the following website: https://oag.ca.gov/meetings. 

 
To submit written material regarding an agenda item or questions regarding the agenda or 
meeting, please contact: 

 
Department of Justice 

CLETS Administration Section 
Lydia Shindelbower 

Telephone: 916-210-4240 
cas@doj.ca.gov 

 
The CAC complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) by ensuring that the facilities are 
accessible to persons with disabilities, and providing this notice and information given to the members of 
the CAC in appropriate alternate formats when requested.  If you need further assistance, including 
disability-related modifications or accommodations, you may contact the CAC no later than seven (7) 
calendars days before the meeting at (916) 210-4240 or cas@doj.ca.gov. 

https://oag.ca.gov/meetings
mailto:cas@doj.ca.gov
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CLETS Traffic Statistics

Fourth Quarter

Oct – Dec 2024

OutboundInbound

Total Messages 242,840,727 243,438,262

Monthly Average 80,946,909 81,146,087

Daily Average 2,639,573 2,646,068

Peak Day 3,254,149 3,264,372

CLETS Traffic Statistics (cont.)

Total CLETS Direct Connections (LCT): 155

Agencies falling below 95 Percent Up Time over Fourth Quarter 2024:

Average Up Time (%)CLETS Direct Connect Lines

Santa Barbara Co SO 80.14

3
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CLETS Misuse Statistics (as of 2/28/25)
1.10.1 (D) System Misuse: 

All CLETS subscribing agencies 
shall submit a report to DOJ of 
investigations performed 
related to CLETS misuse and 
any disciplinary action taken.

1 DOJ’s efforts to obtain 
misuse reports from the 
remaining agencies for the 
2024 calendar year are 
ongoing.

2 Investigations may find 
multiple instances of misuse, 
and administrative actions 
may include more than one 
response per incident.

Calendar Year Reporting Period 2024

Investigations Performed 107

Pending Investigations 32

No CLETS Misuse Found 39

Misuse Violations Found2 42

Counseled 9

Reprimanded 3

Training 12

Suspended 8

Resigned 8

Terminated 9

Other 1

No Action Taken 4

Calendar Year Reporting Period 2024

Agencies/ORIs Submitting Report 1086

Agencies/ORIs Not Reporting1 611

Agencies/ORIs Reporting No Misuse 1058

Agencies/ORIs Reporting CLETS Misuse 28

Action Items
(Action items are requests that staff received from the Committee at previous meetings)

Action Item #1 (Chief White, 12/14/23 & 5/14/24) – DOJ to revisit 
previous action item “Should the PPPs require that retraining occur if 
operator misuse was founded?”

• Actions: Based on Chief White’s suggestion, and the requirements 
in FBI CJIS Security Policy, section AT-2, Literacy Training and 
Awareness, subsection (a)(2); DOJ agrees and will add the 
retraining requirement in section 1.8.2 of the PPPs and present the 
change in the Fall of 2025.

5
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Action Items (cont.)
(Action items are requests that staff received from the Committee at previous meetings)

Action Item #2 (Sheriff Honea, 10/15/24) - DOJ to research what efforts 
are being made to update 2020 CLETS Less Than Full and Full Access 
Reference Guide so that content matches corresponding CLETS test 
question(s) related to when new hires must be tested.

• Actions: DOJ’s Client Services Program has identified the 
inconsistencies noted and is working to address and update related 
documentation/testing. 

CLETS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
MEETING

April 8, 2025

7
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DATE:  April 8, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: CLETS Legislative Session Update 
   
 
 
AB 354: Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training 
Author(s): Rodriguez 
Summary:   

 Would require POST employees whose job duties require access to criminal 
offender record information, state summary criminal history information, or 
information obtained from CLETS to undergo a fingerprint-based state and national 
criminal history background check, 

 Would authorize the commission, Peace Officer Standards Accountability Division, 
and all persons for whom background checks have been completed and their duties 
require access to inspect or duplicate any information derived from CLETS, any 
criminal history information, criminal offender record information, or criminal 
justice information, or any other sensitive, confidential or privileged information if 
the commission determines that the information is needed in the course of the 
commission’s duties.  

Status:  Referred to the Assembly Committee on Public Safety on March 25, 2025 
 



New CLETS Service Request 
Staff Comments 

Calendar # 
CN-01 

Agency Name: Rio Hondo College Campus Police and Safety Department 

Resident City: Whittier County: Los Angeles 

 Recommendation: Approval, pending successful DOJ technical, security, and administrative review 

AGENCY 
Class: 
1=Law enforcement agency 
2=Criminal justice agency 
3=Law enforcement sub-unit of a non-
law enforcement agency 

3 Statute of 
Entitlement: CA Penal Code 830.32 

Primary function of agency 
(How will CLETS be used?) 

Enforce criminal, traffic and parking laws on and around the campus 
of Rio Hondo College. 

Post certified? Yes 
Peace 
Officer 
Powers? 

Yes 

No. of sworn personnel: 1 (10-15 projected) 

SYSTEM 

Type of computer system(s) planned to 
be used by agency in processing CLETS 
transactions: 

Type of System 
x Local Area Network (LAN) 

x Wide Area Network (WAN)  

x Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 

x Records Management System (RMS) 
Message Switching Computer (MSC) 
Wireless Server 

Controller/Other Server 
No System 

Type of interface to CLETS: 

Type of Interface 
Direct line interface to CLETS as county-wide MSC 
Direct line interface to CLETS as host for other agencies 

Direct line interface to CLETS for own agency only 
x Via county MSC to CLETS Los Angeles County Sheriff 

Via DOJ’s LEAWEB 

Via other interface 



New CLETS Service Request
Staff Comments 

Calendar # 
CN-01 

Type of connection to be used to 
access CLETS: 

Type of Connection 

x Dedicated Land Line 

  x Wireless (Identify): WiFi, Cellular 

Satellite/Microwave: 

Remote Communications (Public, Dial-Up, etc.): 

Other: 

Number of terminals planned: 3 =Fixed 3 =Mobile 6 =Total 

If Internet access, does it meet CLETS 
firewall policy? Yes 

If direct interface, will agency journal 
all transactions for three years per 
CLETS policy? 

N/A 

Level of access: Full 

Additional Comments: 
This agency qualifies for CLETS service and has been assigned an ORI by 
the FBI; however, the application is still under DOJ review to ensure the 
agency meets technical, security and administrative requirements.  

HOST RECOMMENDATION 

Host system (MSC, etc.): Los Angeles County Sheriff 

Host recommendation: Yes 

Host recommendation by: Natasha K Butler, Agency CLETS Coordinator 

AUTHOR 

CLETS Analyst: Sabrina Ortega Telephone: (916) 210-2241

Analyst e-mail address: Sabrina.Ortega@doj.ca.gov 

Please contact the analyst if you have any questions on the application or staff comments 
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TRANSCRIPTION OF RECORDED MEETING 

OF 

CLETS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

 

APRIL 8, 2025 

ELK GROVE, CALIFORNIA 

 

  

Members Present: 
MARK BONINI, California State Association of Counties 
VERONICA GILLIARD, Department of Justice 
DONALD O’KEEFE, Office of Emergency Services 
CHRISTINA MICHEL, Department of Motor Vehicles 
JIM MUNRO, League of California Cities 
ANDREW WHITE, California Peace Officers Association 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:   Brittany Olsen-Graham,  

   Foothill Transcription Company 

                  April 21, 2025                               

                  Sloughhouse, California 

                         --o0o--  
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 Chief O'Keefe:  Okay. Good afternoon, everyone. As 

Vice Chair, I would like to call the meeting to order. I 

appreciate everyone making the trip today and attending. 

Next on the agenda will be the roll call. Chris. 

 Mr. Blair:  Thank you. Chief Mark Bonini. 

 Chief Bonini:  Present. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Andrew White. 

 Chief White:  Present. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Jim Munro. 

 Chief Munro:   Present. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Don Chief O'Keefe. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Present. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Veronica Gilliard. 

 Chief Gilliard:  Present. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Christina Michel. 

 Chief Michel:  Present. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Rick Hillman. Okay. Thank you. We 

have a quorum. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. Next on the item 

is housekeeping. Restrooms are located in the lobby. When 

coming into the lobby from the main entrance, go straight 

through the back to the -- the men’s room is on the left. 

The women’s room is on the right.  

 I would like to ask for all members to identify 

themselves before speaking or making a motion or 
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seconding a motion for the transcript. Also, for the 

audience members that would like to make a comment, 

please use the microphone. Public comments will be 

limited to three minutes per person. Members of the 

public will not be permitted to yield their allotted time 

to other members of the public to make comments. 

 Let’s see. Next on our agenda is approval of minutes 

from the October 15th, 2024 meeting. The meeting summary 

from the October 15th meeting was posted prior to this 

meeting. Does the committee have any comments on the 

summary of minutes? Seeing, hearing none, is there any 

public comment? Seeing, hearing none, I would like to 

take a vote. Do I have a motion to accept? 

 Chief White:  Chief White. Motion to approve. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Second. 

 Chief Gilliard:  Chief Gilliard seconds that 

approval. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Okay. Chris, will you do a roll 

call? 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief White. 

 Chief White:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Bonini. 

 Chief Bonini:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Munro. 

 Chief Munro:  Approve. 
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 Mr. Blair:  Chief O'Keefe. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Gilliard. 

 Chief Gilliard:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Michel. 

 Chief Michel:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  And that is all. Thank you. That has 

passed. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. Next on our agenda 

will be the Chairman’s Report. The Chair position is 

still vacant on the committee. Therefore, as Vice Chair, 

I will be chairing today’s meeting. Nominating and voting 

for a new Chair will happen sometime in the future. 

 For the Chairman’s Report, we have a new member 

introduction on the agenda: Chief Jim Munro representing 

the League of California Cities. Chris, please read Chief 

Munro’s bio. 

 Mr. Blair:  Thank you. Serving his community since 

1998, Jim is the Chief of Police for the Grover Beach 

Police Department, a progressive police department on the 

Central Coast of California. Prior to joining the Grover 

Beach Police Department, Jim spent 23 years with the 

Clovis Police Department located in the Central Valley of 

California.  

 As a former dispatcher, detective, SWAT member, and 
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experienced public information officer, Jim enjoys using 

his experience to help lead a 21st century police 

organization into the future. Jim has a passion for 

technology and law enforcement and is recognized as a 

subject matter expert in the field. He serves on the 

California Police Chief’s Association Technology 

Committee and has previously served on the Communications 

Committee.  

 Jim is a graduate of the FBI National Academy, and 

he has a master’s degree in Law Enforcement and Public 

Safety Leadership from the University of San Diego. 

Additionally, he is a graduate of Class 403 of the 

Sherman Block Supervisory Leadership Institute.  

 In his free time, Jim enjoys spending time with his 

family, traveling, skiing, and playing beach volleyball. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. Please, everyone, 

join me in welcoming Chief Munro to the committee. Chief, 

not to put you on the spot, but any comment you’d like to 

make? 

 Chief Munro:  Happy to join this great group. It’s 

great to meet everybody and see some familiar faces in 

the audience as well. So, I’m looking forward to serving 

with you, and we’ll be seeing each other for quite a 

while. Thank you. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chief. Before moving onto 
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the next item, is there any public comment? Hearing none, 

seeing none, let’s go to our next agenda item. That’s the 

Executive Secretary’s Report. I’ll turn it over to our 

Executive Secretary. 

 Mr. Blair:  Thank you. For the report, we’ll be 

discussing CLETS traffic, misuse statistics, and action 

items from previous meetings. 

 In the fourth quarter of 2024 between October and 

December, there were approximately 243 million total 

messages for inbound and outbound. The monthly average is 

approximately 81 million, daily average is approximately 

2.6 million, and the peak day is approximately 3.2 

million messages. 

 During this quarter, of the total 155 direct 

connections, this is a list of agencies falling below 95 

percent uptime for the fourth quarter. Only a single 

agency fell below the average uptime, averaging 80.14 

percent. This is Santa Barbara County Sheriff. This is 

one of their connections. No other agencies use this 

connection, and the agency is currently working to 

replace this connection. 

 For CLETS misuse statistics, as of 2/28/25 for the 

2024 calendar year, we have 1,086 agencies or ORIs 

submitting the report, 611 not reporting at this time -- 

or as of 2/28/25, 1,058 reporting no misuse, and 28 
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reporting misuse. As of April 4th, 2025, DOJ has received 

reports for around 300 additional ORIs that are not 

reflected in these statistics, so those statistics will 

be included in the Fall 2025 report. DOJ’s efforts to 

obtain misuse reports from the remaining agencies are 

ongoing. 

 For 2024, there were 107 investigations performed 

related to CLETS misuse. 32 of those investigations are 

ending, 39 found no CLETS misuse, 42 violations were 

found from the 107 investigations performed, 9 resulted 

in counseling, 3 resulted in reprimand, 12 resulted in 

training, 8 resulted in suspension, 8 resulted in 

resignation, 9 resulted in termination, 1 “other” and 4 

resulted in no action taken. And for the “no action 

taken” and “other,” the agency reporting “other” took 

several different administrative actions, including 

counseling and training, and reported them accordingly. 

For “no action,” -- all four instances where no action 

taken was reported -- CLETS misuse was unfounded. 

 Onto action items. Actions items are requests that 

staff received from the committee at previous meetings. 

 Action item number one from Chief White from 

December 14th, ’23 and May 14th of ’24: DOJ to revisit 

previous action item that PPPs require that retraining 

occur if operator misuse was founded. Actions: based on 
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Chief White’s suggestion and the requirements in the FBI 

CJIS Security Policy section AT-2, Literacy Training and 

Awareness, subsection a(2), DOJ agrees and will add the 

retraining requirement in section 1.8.2 of the PPPs and 

present those changes in the fall of 2025. 

 Action item number two from Sheriff Honea from 

October 15, 2024: DOJ to research what efforts are being 

made to update 2020 CLETS Less-Than-Full and Full Access 

Reference Guide so that content matches corresponding 

CLETS test questions related to when new hires must be 

tested. Actions: DOJ’s Client Services Program has 

identified the inconsistencies noted and is working to 

address and update related documentation and testing. 

Thank you. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. Before moving on, 

are there any comments from the committee? Seeing, 

hearing none, any public comment? Not seeing or hearing 

any, let’s move onto the next agenda item. This will be 

the CLETS legislative update. John Ponce will be 

providing the legislative report. Thank you, John. 

 Mr. Ponce:  Hi. Good afternoon, Vice Chair and 

committee members. My name is John Ponce. I’m the 

Legislative Manager for the Department of Justice, 

California Justice Information Services Division, and I’m 

here to provide a legislative update for one bill and 
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that is Assembly Bill 354 by Assembly Member Rodriguez. 

It’s the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and 

Training. Assembly Bill 354 would require employees of 

the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training, 

or POST, whose job duties require access to criminal 

offender record information, state summary criminal 

history information, or information obtained from CLETS, 

to undergo a fingerprint-based state and national 

criminal history background check. This bill would 

authorize the commission and the Peace Officer Standards 

Accountability Division and all persons for whom 

background checks have been completed and required by 

their duties, to inspect and duplicate any information 

derived from CLETS, any criminal history information, 

criminal offender record information, or criminal justice 

information, or any other sensitive, confidential, or 

privileged information, if the commission determines that 

the information is needed in the course of the 

commission’s duties. The bill has been referred to the 

Assembly Committee on Public Safety and is awaiting a 

hearing. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, John. Appreciate that. 

Does the committee have any questions? Not seeing any or 

hearing any, is there any public comment on this issue of 

this report? Not seeing any. Thank you very much, John. 
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Appreciate it. 

 Mr. Ponce:  Thank you. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Okay. Next on the agenda is a vote, 

a new service request. Chris, please present the request 

for the new CLETS service. 

 Mr. Blair:  Thank you. The new request is from Rio 

Hondo College Campus Police and Safety Department located 

in Whittier, California in Los Angeles County. The agency 

is a Class 3 law enforcement subunit of a non-law 

enforcement agency. The statute of entitlement is 

California Penal Code 830.32. The primary function of the 

agency is to enforce criminal traffic and parking laws on 

and around the campus of Rio Hondo College. Officers are 

POST certified. They have peace officer powers, and they 

have 10 to 15 projected sworn personnel. They are seeking 

access to CLETS through the Los Angeles County Sheriff. 

Their system has a local area network, wide area network, 

computer-aided dispatch, and records management system. 

Their type of connection will be a dedicated landline and 

wireless with Wi-Fi and cellular. They plan to have three 

fixed terminals and three mobile terminals. Their network 

does have internet access, and it meets CLETS Firewall 

Policy. The level of access they are seeking is “full.” 

Additionally, this agency qualifies for CLETS service and 

has been assigned an ORI by the FBI. However, the 
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application is still under DOJ review to ensure the 

agency meets technical, security, and administrative 

requirements. DOJ’s recommendation is approval pending 

successful DOJ technical, security, and administrative 

review. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. The approval for 

this agency requires a vote. Is there any discussion from 

the members surrounding this agency? Okay. Before we ask 

for a motion, is there any public comment on this? Not 

seeing or hearing any, do I have a motion? 

 Chief Bonini:  So moved. Chief Bonini. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Chief Bonini. 

 Chief Munro:  Chief Munro. Second. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Chief Munro. Second. Chris, can we 

initiate a roll call vote? 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief White. 

 Chief White:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Bonini. 

 Chief Bonini:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Munro. 

 Chief Munro:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief O'Keefe. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Gilliard. 

 Chief Gilliard:  Approve. 
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 Mr. Blair:  Chief Michel. 

 Chief Michel:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Thank you. Passes. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. Next on our agenda 

are upgrade applications approved by DOJ. For CLETS 

upgrade applications approved by DOJ, there are a total 

of 15 approved since our last meeting. These are 

presented as information only and do not require a vote 

by the committee. I will ask members and the public to 

refer to the agenda where they are listed. Are there any 

comments from the committee? Seeing none, any comments 

from the public? Okay. Thank you very much. 

 Let’s move onto the next agenda item. Next agenda 

item is going to be closed session. Before we go into 

closed session, Chris, please present the information 

about what we’re about to do here. 

 Mr. Blair:  Pursuant to Government Code section 

11126 subsection (c)(18), a closed session is being 

conducted in order to review detailed client reports 

regarding specific matters that pose a threat or 

potential threat of criminal activity against CLETS 

and/or CLETS data transmitted between the DOJ and 

specific client law enforcement agencies. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. Could you please 

initiate a roll call vote -- 
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 Mr. Blair:  Yes. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  -- to move into closed session? 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief White. 

 Chief White:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Bonini. 

 Chief Bonini:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Munro. 

 Chief Munro:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief O'Keefe. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Gilliard. 

 Chief Gilliard:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  Chief Michel. 

 Chief Michel:  Approve. 

 Mr. Blair:  That passes. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Okay. Thank you. Before we go into 

closed session, is there any public comment? Okay. Not 

seeing, hearing anything, we will be in closed session. 

(Closed Session) 

 Mr. Blair:  -- threat or potential threat of 

criminal activity against CLETS and/or CLETS data 

transmitted between the DOJ and specific client law 

enforcement agencies where the disclosure of these 

considerations could compromise the security of CLETS or 

the transmitted CLETS data. The committee evaluated the 
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status of compliance efforts and directed dates by which 

items need to be resolved. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chris. Is there any 

public comment on this item? Okay. Not seeing or hearing 

any, let’s go to Members’ Reports. For Members’ Reports, 

as I call on each of the members, please provide a report 

for the agency or association which you are representing 

on the committee. I’m going to start over there. 

 Chief Michel [for California DMV]:  Nothing to 

report. 

 Chief Gilliard [for California DOJ]:  Nothing to 

report. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Just from the Governor’s Office of 

Emergency Services, I think just everything for us has 

been the Los Angeles fires and continuing through the 

recovery. I don't know if anybody has seen it, but I was 

down there several times. It’s devasting what happened. 

So, it just comes down to preparation and we never know 

when these events are going to happen. It’s just tragic 

what happened down in the Los Angeles area, but we still 

continue to work with the government, FEMA. The governor 

is very, very much involved in this and we are trying to 

bring as much as we can to those communities. Thank you. 

 Chief Munro:  Chief Munro representing the League of 

California Cities. No report at this time, but we’ll see 
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for the next time. Thank you. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you. 

 Chief Bonini:  Mark Bonini for California State 

Association of Counties. I don’t have anything to report. 

 Chief White:  Chief White for California Peace 

Officers Association. Nothing to report. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you. Is there any public 

comment on this item? Okay.  

 Community discussion, open forum, public comment. 

For this next agenda item, I would like to first open it 

up to the committee to request any new items members 

would like to recommend for future committee meetings. 

Although any committee member may identify a topic of 

interest, committee members may not substantially discuss 

or take action on any matter raised during the meeting 

that is not included on this agenda, except if you decide 

to place a matter on the agenda for a future meeting. Now 

I’d like to open it up to any public comment of this item 

that is not agendized. Okay. Not hearing or seeing 

anything, the next meeting will be scheduled on or about 

September -- oh. I’m sorry. I would like to – would the 

committee like to make any comments? Yes. 

 Chief White:  Chief White. This will be my last 

meeting. I have notified the California Peace Officers’ 

Association of my intent to step down from here and allow 
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somebody else to do it. It’s been I think almost five 

years -- four or five years. So, I just wanted to thank 

everybody up here for serving on this. I also wanted to 

thank the DOJ staff -- I know up here we kind of work 

through all this stuff, but on the back end I know 

there’s a tremendous amount of work. There’s a super 

reliable system that I think we should all be proud of 

and it keeps officers safe, it keeps the community safe. 

I know through working on this committee and working with 

the Department of Justice, I’ve come to find out the 

incredible skill set that your staff have, the 

developers, everybody else that makes it all work. On the 

front end we just put in information, we get the right 

information at the right time. So, it’s been a pleasure 

and all the best to you as you move forward. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Thank you, Chief. I want to thank 

you for your career in law enforcement. Hopefully you’re 

not leaving. You’re retiring? 

 Chief White:  No. 

 Chief O'Keefe:  Okay. Just leaving. I can tell you 

Chief White and I have worked on other committees and he 

is one of the most learned, if you will, of police chiefs 

like us. He’s very knowledgeable in the areas of 

technology and whether it’s communications, or whether 

it’s what we’re doing with CLETS. I just want to thank 
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you very much for everything you’ve done, you’re always a 

resource, and I know you’ll take the call when people 

have questions. Thank you. 

 Our next meeting will be in September or October of 

2025. Staff will be looking for a date, so you will be 

informed on that. I move to adjourn the meeting. Do we 

need a second, Chris? Okay. We don’t need it. Thank you 

all for coming. Take care. (Recording Ends) 

--o0o-- 
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